
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/17/2019 • Last updated: 08/19/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name (No response) 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 11 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 01/2009 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2009 

INSTRUCTION 
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To ensure each scholar reaches individual academic and personal success through a nurturing scholar 
centered approach. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 Rigorous standards based curriculum: Common core aligned
curriculum with a focus on teaching for depth, not breadth 

Variable 2 Full inclusion model: All scholars are educated in full 
inclusion classrooms with equal access to high education for
all 

Variable 3 Career focus: Focusing scholars on learning about different
careers at a young age to connect with careers first, then to
see college as a mechanic, with which to attain their dream 
careers. 

Variable 4 Nurturing school environment: Nurturing and supportive
school environment that values social development
alongside academic achievement 

Variable 5 Proactive and positive behavioral model: Proactively
teaching behavioral expectaitons 

Variable 6 Growth Priority: Valuing and acknowledging growth for
scholars and staff above everything else 

Variable 7 Parents as partners: Working with families to create the best
school environment possible 

Variable 8 (No response) 

Variable 9 (No response) 

Variable 10 (No response) 

Need additional space for 

variables 

No 
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h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) http://www.equalitycharterschool.org/ 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 650 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

644 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

Yes, 2 sites 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

3 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	
	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address 

4140 Hutchinson 
Site 1 River Pkwy East

Bronx, NY 10475 

Phone Number 

7184599597 

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Caitlin Franco 

Gabriel Park 

Gabriel Park 

Amanda Meyers 

Caitlin Franco 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

District/CSD Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

NYC CSD 11 6 8 

Tracee Black 

Co located Space 

Alternate Phone 

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

n/a 

Email Address 
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m1c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school 
will leave 
current co
location 

Is school 
working with
NYCDOE to 
expand into 
current 
space? 

If so, list year
expansion
will occur. 

Is school 
working with
NYCDOE to 
move to 
separate
space? 

If so, list the 
proposed
space and
year planned
for move 

School at Full 
Capacity at
Site 

Site 1 No No Yes 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109679652/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109679652/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

School Site 2 

m2. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD 

Site 2 
2141 Seward 
Avenue 
Bronx, NY 10473 

718 459 9597 NYC CSD 8 

Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

9 12 9 12 
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m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Caitlin Franco 

Tracee Black 

Gabriel Park 

Gabriel Park 

Gene Johnson 

Caitlin Franco 

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

Private Space 

Alternate Phone Email Address 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m2d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 2 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

6 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Caitlin Franco 

Position Executive Director 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/24 

Thank you. 
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NYC Department of Buildings 
280 Broadway, New York, NY 10007 
 
Thomas Fariello, R.A., Acting Commissioner 
 
 
 

Letter of Completion 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Re:   

 Job #:
 Block:              Lot:   

 
 

Dear 
 
Please be advised that the work related to the above application is completed 
and was signed off in the Building Information System (BIS) on 
 
Based on the nature of the work filed on this application a new certificate of 
occupancy is not required. 
 
 
 
 
   Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
   Borough Commissioner 
 

STEVEN P HAMMER 
1001 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS 
NEW YORK, NY 10018 

2141 SEWARD AVENUE, BRONX 

3610 1 

STEVEN P HAMMER: 

03/28/2019. 

BRONX 

This permit copy created on 03/29/2019 reflects the Commissioner(s) as of such date. 

Letter Generated on: 03/29/2019 



        

  
 

       
     

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

 

Page 1 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:    

This certifies  that the premises described herein  conforms  substantially  to  the  approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Bronx 

2141 SEWARD AVENUE Address: 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 2094817 

Block Number: 03610 

Lot Number(s): 1 

Building Type: 
Altered 

Certificate Type: Final 

Effective Date: 08/06/2019 

This building is subject to this Building Code:  Prior to 1968 Code 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 1 (Prior to 1968 Code designation) 

Building Occupancy Group classification: E (2014/2008 Code) 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: None 

No. of stories: 4 Height in feet: 35  No. of dwelling units: 0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
Fire alarm system 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



               
      

 

           

 

                            
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:    

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

BAS 320 OG A-3 0 3 CAFETERIA, KITCHEN, STORAGE, BOILER 
ROOM, ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT ROOM, 
ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM. 

001 001 864 100 E 0 3 MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM (AUDITORIUM/GYM), 
A-3 CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, TOILETS, LOBBY. 

002 002 360 100 E 0 3 CLASSROOMS 

003 003 180 40 E 0 3 CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, TOILETS 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 8/6/2019 1:31:46 PM 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	

Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/19/2019 

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

year=2018&instid=800000064235 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	
	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 08/14/2019 • Last updated: 10/29/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

For each year of the
school’s renewal 
charter term, the 
percentage of the
school’s students 
who score at or 
above Level 3 on the 
New York State ELA 
examination must 
exceed such 
percentage for the
Community School
District (CSD) in
which the school is 
located. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 3 8) 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

According to
data.nysed. gov, our
proficiency rate for
ELA grades 6 8 in
2019 was below CSD 
11, grades 6 8.
CSD 11 was 38%, 
whereas Equality was
30%. 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Not Met 

Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

We increased our 
number of 
instructional minutes 
in the Humanities 
classroom. We added 
another Humanities 
teacher to each 
grade level to provide
more opportunities
for teacher 
collaboration. We 
hired a full time 
reading specialist to 
support a greater
number of below 
grade level readers
inside the regular
school day. We added
an additional class, 
Writing for Advanced
ELLs, to better 
support our influx of
English Language
Learners that came 
to us in 2018 2019. 

For each year of the 

1 / 29 



	 	

	

	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

2 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
3 

Academ 
ic Goal 

school’s renewal 
charter term, the 
percentage of the
school’s students 
who score at or 
above Level 3 on the 
New York State ELA 
examination must 
exceed such 
percentage for New
York City. (Relevant
for schools serving
grades 3 8) 

For each year of the
school’s renewal 
charter term, the 
percentage of the
school’s students 
who score at or 
above Level 3 on the 
New York State 
Mathematics 
examination must 
exceed such 
percentage for the
Community School
District (CSD).
(Relevant for schools
serving grades 3 8) 

For each year of the
school’s renewal 
charter term, the 
percentage of the
school’s students 
who score at or 
above Level 3 on the 
New York State 
Mathematics 
examination must 
exceed such 
percentage for New
York City. (Relevant
for schools serving
grades 3 8) 

According to
data.nysed. gov, our
proficiency rate for
ELA grades 6 8 in
2019 was below New 
York City, grades 6 8.
NYC was 47%, 
whereas Equality was
30%. 

According to
data.nysed. gov, our
proficiency rate for
math grades 6 8 in
2019 was below CSD 
11, grades 6 8. Not Met 
CSD 11 was 30%, 
whereas Equality was
21%. 

According to
data.nysed. gov, our
proficiency rate for
math grades 6 8 in
2019 was below New 
York City, grades 6 8.
NYC was 41%, 
whereas Equality was
21%. 

Not Met See above. 

We increased the 
number of minutes in 
the math classroom. 
We expanded our
math remediation 
program and put
inside of the regular
school day hours. We
added another math 
teacher to each 
grade level to provide
more teacher 
collaboration 
opportunities. We
hired a math 
consultant to work 
with our department
head and math 
teaching team
throughout the year. 

Not Met See above. 

For each year of the
school's renewal 

2 / 29 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

charter term, at least 
75% of students in 
the relevant NYSED 
four year graduation
accountability cohort
will earn at least a 
mark of 75 on an 
English regents exam
(Comprehensive
English or Common
Core English
Language Arts) by
the end of June of 
their fourth year in
the cohort. A student 
will be counted 
toward this goal if
they have taken at
least one English
regents exam during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school, and only
English regents
exams taken during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school will be 
counted. 

Duplicated goal from
goal sheet that we
deleted here. 

For each year of the
school's renewal 
charter term, at least 
75% of students with 
disabilities in the 
relevant NYSED four
year graduation
accountability cohort
will earn at least a 
mark of 75 on an 
English regents exam
(Comprehensive
English or Common
Core English
Language Arts) by
the end of June of 
their fourth year in
the cohort. A student 
will be counted 

At Equality, 54% of
Cohort 2015 (the
only completed year
of our new charter 
term) received a 75+
score on the English
Regents. 

Not Met 

At Equality, 42% of 

3 / 29 

We developed a 9 12
writing arc and
revised our ELA 
curriculum to include 
it to ensure we have 
a systematic
approach to writing
instruction that builds 
upon the previous
year in ELA. 

We implemented a
new policy to push
SWDs to retake 
exams (and attend
Regents review 



	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	

	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	
	

7 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 

toward this goal if
they have taken at
least one English
regents exam during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school, and only
English regents
exams taken during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school will be 
counted. Students 
will be considered 
students with 
disabilities for the 
purposes of this goal
if they were classified
as a student with a 
disability in ATS on
10/31 of any of the
four cohort high
school years. 

For each year of the
school's renewal 
charter term, at least 
75% of students with 
disabilities in the 
relevant NYSED four
year graduation
accountability cohort
will earn at least a 
mark of 75 on a math 
regents exam
(Common Core
Algebra I, Common
Core Geometry,
Common Core 
Algebra II, Integrated
Algebra, Geometry,
Algebra
2/Trigonometry) by
the end of June of 
their fourth year in
the cohort. A student 
will be counted 
toward this goal if
they have taken at
least one math 
regents exam during
the time they were 

SWDs in Cohort 2015 
(the only completed
year of our new
charter term)
received a 75+ score 
on the English
Regents. 

At Equality, 17% of
SWDs in Cohort 2015 
(the only completed
year of our new
charter term)
received a 75+ score 
on a math Regents. 

Not Met 

Not Met 

classes) after passing
with safety net
results on the first 
attempt. We
developed a PLC for
special education
teachers to focus on 
improving Regents
results for scholars 
who are successfully
passing coursework. 

We implemented a
new policy to push
SWDs to retake 
exams (and attend
Regents review
classes) after passing
with safety net
results on the first 
attempt. We
developed a PLC for
special education
teachers to focus on 
improving Regents 

4 / 29 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

actively enrolled at
the school, and only
math regents exams
taken during the time
they were actively
enrolled at the school 
will be counted. 
Students will be 
considered students 
with disabilities for 
the purposes of this
goal if they were
classified as a 
student with a 
disability in ATS on
10/31 of any of the
four cohort high
school years. 

For each year of the
school's renewal 
charter term, at least 
75% of English
language learners in
the relevant NYSED 
four year graduation
accountability cohort
will earn at least a 
mark of 75 on an 
English regents exam
(Comprehensive
English or Common
Core English
Language Arts) by
the end of June of 
their fourth year in
the cohort. A student 
will be counted 
toward this goal if
they have taken at
least one English
regents exam during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school, and only
English regents
exams taken during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school will be 
counted. Students 
will be considered 
English language 

results for scholars 
who are successfully
passing coursework. 

At Equality, 33% of We launched a new ELLs in Cohort 2015 course for more (the only completed advanced ELLs at the year of our new Not Met high school, ESOL 2,charter term) to ensure writing skillreceived a 75+ score development ison the English further supported. Regents. 

5 / 29 



	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	

Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

learners for the 
purposes of this goal
if they were classified
as an English
language learner in
ATS on 10/31 of any
of the four cohort 
high school years. 

For each year of the
school's renewal 
charter term, at least 
75% of English
language learners in
the relevant NYSED 
four year graduation
accountability cohort
will earn at least a 
mark of 75 on a math 
regents exam
(Common Core
Algebra I, Common
Core Geometry,
Common Core 
Algebra II, Integrated
Algebra, Geometry,
Algebra
2/Trigonometry) by
the end of June of 
their fourth year in
the cohort. A student 
will be counted 
toward this goal if
they have taken at
least one math 
regents exam during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school, and only
math regents exams
taken during the time
they were actively
enrolled at the school 
will be counted. 
Students will be 
considered English
language learners for
the purposes of this
goal if they were
classified as an 
English language
learner in ATS on 
10/31 of any of the 

We placed a bilingual
At Equality, 33% of SpEd teacher in our
ELLs in Cohort 2015 Algebra I course this
(the only completed year. We initiated
year of our new Not Met homework help for
charter term) ELLs to ensure they
received a 75+ score get more immediate 
on a math Regents. support on

challenging content. 

6 / 29 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

four cohort high
school years. 

2. Do have more academic goals Yes 

to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
11 

For each year of the
school's renewal 
charter term, at least 
75% of students 
qualified for the free
or reduced price
lunch program in the
relevant NYSED four
year graduation
accountability cohort
will earn at least a 
mark of 75 on an 
English regents exam
(Comprehensive
English or Common
Core English
Language Arts) by
the end of June of 
their fourth year in
the cohort. A student 
will be counted 
toward this goal if
they have taken at
least one English
regents exam during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school, and only
English regents
exams taken during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school will be 
counted. Students 
will be considered 
qualified for the free
or reduced price
lunch program for 

At Equality, 55% of
FRPLs in Cohort 2015 
(the only completed
year of our new
charter term)
received a 75+ score 
on the ELA Regents. 

Not Met 

Since the vast 
majority of Equality
scholars fall into the 
sub population of
FRPL, we address 
their needs through
schoolwide efforts. 
The most significant
of which, in ELA this 
year, is the
development of our
9 12 writing arc and
revised our ELA 
curriculum to include 
it to ensure we have 
a systematic
approach to writing
instruction that builds 
upon the previous
year in ELA. 
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the purposes of this
goal if they were
classified as such in 
ATS on 10/31 of any
of the four cohort 
high school years. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
12 

For each year of the
school's renewal 
charter term, at least 
75% of students 
qualified for the free
or reduced price
lunch program in the
relevant NYSED four
year graduation
accountability cohort
will earn at least a 
mark of 75 on a math 
regents exam
(Common Core
Algebra I, Common
Core Geometry,
Common Core 
Algebra II, Integrated
Algebra, Geometry,
Algebra
2/Trigonometry) by
the end of June of 
their fourth year in
the cohort. A student 
will be counted 
toward this goal if
they have taken at
least one math 
regents exam during
the time they were
actively enrolled at
the school, and only
math regents exams
taken during the time
they were actively
enrolled at the school 
will be counted. 
Students will be 
considered qualified
for the free or 
reduced price lunch
program for the
purposes of this goal
if they were classified
as such in ATS on 
10/31 of any of the 

At Equality, 43% of
FRPLs in Cohort 2015 
(the only completed
year of our new Not Met 
charter term)
received a 75+ score 
on a math Regents. 

Since the vast 
majority of Equality
scholars fall into the 
sub population of
FRPL, we address 
their needs through
schoolwide efforts. 
The most significant
of which, in math this 
year, is the
placement of our
strongest math
teaching team now
in Algebra I, to
ensure a solid 
foundation for all 
high school math
courses, for all 
scholars. 
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four cohort high
school years. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
13 

Academ 
ic Goal 
14 

Academ 

Based on the 
proficiency rates on
the New York State 
ELA examination, the 
school will 
demonstrate positive
academic growth in
each year of the
charter term. 
(Relevant for schools
serving grades 3 8) 

Based on the 
proficiency rates on
the New York State 
Mathematics 
examination, the 
school will 
demonstrate positive
academic growth in
each year of the
charter term. 
(Relevant for schools
serving grades 3 8) 

In each year of the
charter term, the 
school will 
demonstrate 
increased pass rates
on either the 
Comprehensive or
Common Core 
English Regents 

Since only one
testing year of our
new charter term has 
transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. However, our 
ELA results 
decreased from 2018 
to 2019 (though we
significantly
increased our ELL 
and SWD population
in 2019 historically
more challenging to
serve scholars). 

Since only one
testing year of our
new charter term has 
transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. However, our 
math results 
increased from 2018 
to 2019 (+1
variance). 

Our ELA Regents
results decreased 
from 2018 to 2019 by
1 percentage point
( 1 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 

Not Met 

Met 

We increased our 
number of 
instructional minutes 
in the Humanities 
classroom. We added 
another Humanities 
teacher to each 
grade level to provide
more opportunities
for teacher 
collaboration. We 
hired a full time 
reading specialist to 
support a greater
number of below 
grade level readers
inside the regular
school day. We added
an additional class, 
Writing for Advanced
ELLs, to better 
support our influx of
English Language
Learners that came 
to us in 2018 2019. 

We developed a 9 12
writing arc and
revised our ELA 
curriculum to include 
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ic Goal 
15 

exam. Goal will be 
applicable if six or
more students take 
either exam, and the 
same exam meets 
that threshold for at 
least two consecutive 
years. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 9 12) 

cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Academ 
ic Goal 
16 

In each year of the
charter term, the 
school will 
demonstrate 
increased pass rates
on either the 
Geometry or
Common Core 
Geometry Regents
exam. Goal will be 
applicable if six or
more students take 
either exam, and the 
same exam meets 
that threshold for at 
least two consecutive 
years. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 9 12) 

Our Geometry
Regents results
increased from 2018 
to 2019 by 5
percentage points
(+5 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Academ 
ic Goal 
17 

In each year of the
charter term, the 
school will 
demonstrate 
increased pass rates
on either the Algebra
II/Trigonometry or
Common Core 
Algebra II Regents
exam. Goal will be 
applicable if six or
more students take 

Our Algebra II
Regents results
increased from 2018 
to 2019 by 32
percentage points
(+32 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on 

Not Met it to ensure we have 
a systematic
approach to writing
instruction that builds 
upon the previous
year in ELA. 

Met 

Met 
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either exam, and the 
same exam meets 
that threshold for at 
least two consecutive 
years. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 9 12) 

our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Academ 
ic Goal 
18 

In each year of the
charter term, the 
school will 
demonstrate 
increased pass rates
on either the Global 
History and
Geography or US
History and
Government Regents
exam. Goal will be 
applicable if six or
more students take 
either exam, and the 
same exam meets 
that threshold for at 
least two consecutive 
years. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 9 12) 

Our U.S. History
Regents results
decreased from 2018 
to 2019 by 6
percentage points ( 6
variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Academ 
ic Goal 
19 

In each year of the
charter term, the 
school will 
demonstrate 
increased pass rates
on at least one 
science Regents
exam. Goal will be 
applicable if six or
more students take 
the same science 
Regents exam in
each year of the
charter term, and the 

Our Living
Environment Regents
results increased 
from 2018 to 2019 by
3 percentage points
(+3 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth 
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coaching support forNot Met our 2nd year teacher
in U.S. History. 
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same exam meets 
that threshold for at 
least two consecutive 
years. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 9 12) 

goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Our 6 8 ELA State 
Exam results for ELLs 
decreased from 2018 

Where the school has 
an eligible subgroup
population (deemed
as six or more 
students) of English
language learners,
the school will 

to 2019 by 9
percentage points ( 9
variance). (Please
note, the 9 percent
decrease represents
1 scholar who 
graduated at the end
of 2018.) 

Academ 
ic Goal 
20 

demonstrate positive
academic growth on
New York State ELA 
examination 
proficiency rates for
that applicable
population in each
year of the charter
term. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 3 8) 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Not Met 

We increased our 
number of 
instructional minutes 
in the Humanities 
classroom. We added 
another Humanities 
teacher to each 
grade level to provide
more opportunities
for teacher 
collaboration. We 
hired a full time 
reading specialist to 
support a greater
number of below 
grade level readers
inside the regular
school day. We added
an additional class, 
Writing for Advanced
ELLs, to better 
support our influx of
English Language
Learners that came 
to us in 2018 2019. 

3. Do have more academic goals Yes 

to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 

Goal Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Goal 

Our 6 8 ELA State 
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21 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
22 

Where the school has 
an eligible subgroup
population (deemed
as six or more 
students) of students
with disabilities, the 
school will 
demonstrate positive
academic growth on
New York State ELA 
examination 
proficiency rates for
that applicable
population in each
year of the charter
term. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 3 8) 

Where the school has 
an eligible subgroup
population (deemed
as six or more 
students) of students
eligible for the free or
reduced price lunch
program, the school
will demonstrate 
positive academic
growth on New York
State ELA 
examination 
proficiency rates for
that applicable
population in each
year of the charter
term. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 3 8) 

Exam results for 
SWDs decreased 
from 2018 to 2019 by
1 percentage points
( 1 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Our 6 8 ELA State 
Exam results for 
FRPLs decreased 
from 2018 to 2019 by
8 percentage points
( 8 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Not Met 

Not Met 

We decreased the 
number of classes 
our Humanities ICT 
teachers work with 
every day, from 4
sections to 2 
sections, thereby
reducing their
student rosters by
half. They now work
with 45 scholars each 
day, instead of 90.
This allows for an 
increase in academic 
feedback and in daily
attention and 
individualization. 

Since the vast 
majority of Equality
scholars fall into the 
sub population of
FRPL, we address 
their needs through
schoolwide efforts. 

We increased our 
number of 
instructional minutes 
in the Humanities 
classroom. We added 
another Humanities 
teacher to each 
grade level to provide
more opportunities
for teacher 
collaboration. We 
hired a full time 
reading specialist to 
support a greater
number of below 
grade level readers
inside the regular
school day. 

Our 6 8 Math State 
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23 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
24 

Where the school has 
an eligible subgroup
population (deemed
as six or more 
students) of English
language learners,
the school will 
demonstrate positive
academic growth on
New York State Math 
examination 
proficiency rates for
that applicable
population in each
year of the charter
term. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 3 8) 

Where the school has 
an eligible subgroup
population (deemed
as six or more 
students) of students
with disabilities, the 
school will 
demonstrate positive
academic growth on
New York State Math 
examination 
proficiency rates for
that applicable
population in each
year of the charter
term. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 3 8) 

Exam results for ELLs 
increased from 2018 
to 2019 by 2
percentage points
(+2 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term Met 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Our 6 8 Math State 
Exam results for 
SWDs increased from 
2018 to 2019 by 5
percentage points
(+5 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of
our new charter term Met 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Our 6 8 Math State 
Exam results for 
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25 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
26 

Where the school has 
an eligible subgroup
population (deemed
as six or more 
students) of students
eligible for the free or
reduced price lunch
program, the school
will demonstrate 
positive academic
growth on New York
State Math 
examination 
proficiency rates for
that applicable
population in each
year of the charter
term. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 3 8) 

For each year of the
next charter term, 
the school’s 4 year
graduation rate as of
June each year as
reported by NYSED
will be at or above 
the citywide 
averages. 

FRPLs increased from 
2018 to 2019 by 1
percentage points
(+1 variance). 

*Again, since only
one testing year of Met our new charter term 
has transpired, we 
cannot report on
our academic growth
goals that are
specific to growth
within the charter 
term. Instead, we are 
comparing the first
year of our charter to
the last year of the
previous charter term
(2019 v 2018). 

Our June 2019 
graduation rate
(Cohort 2015) was
82%, whereas the 
citywide rate for
2018 (Cohort 2014)
was 73%. 

Met *Note Citywide
graduation rates for
2019 were not 
publically available at
the time of this 
report. Instead, we
compared our 2019
results to the 
citywide results for
2018. 

Our June 2019 ELL 
graduation rate
(Cohort 2015) was
50%, counting only
current ELLs. 
However, it was 67% 
if we include a 
Former ELL who was 
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27 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
28 

Academ 
ic Goal 

For each year of the
next charter term, 
the school’s 4 year
graduation rate as of
June each year for
English language
learners as reported
by NYSED will be at
or above the citywide 
averages. 

For each year of the
next charter term, 
the school’s 4 year
graduation rate as of
June each year for
students with 
disabilities as 
reported by NYSED
will be at or above 
the citywide 
averages. 

For each year of the
next charter term, 
the school’s 4 year
graduation rate as of
June each year for
students eligible for
free or reduced price
lunch as reported by
NYSED will be at or 

an ELL on at least 
one BEDS Day in
his/her high school 
years. 

Citywide ELL
graduation rate in
2018 was 29%. 

*Note Citywide
graduation rates for
2019 were not 
publically available at
the time of this 
report. Instead, we
compared our 2019
results to the 
citywide results for
2018. 

Our June 2019 SWD 
graduation rate
(Cohort 2015) was
67%. 

Citywide SWD
graduation rate in
2018 was 47%. 

*Note Citywide
graduation rates for
2019 were not 
publically available at
the time of this 
report. Instead, we
compared our 2019
results to the 
citywide results for
2018. 

Our June 2019 FRPL 
graduation rate
(Cohort 2015) was
79%. 

Citywide FRPL
graduation rate in
2018 was 72%. 

*Note Citywide
graduation rates for 

Met 

Met 

Met 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
30 

Academ 
ic Goal 
31 

above the citywide
averages. (Applicable
if the city begins
reporting on this) 

For each year of the
next charter term, 
the school will show 
progress towards
having 75% of
students enrolled in 
their 1st year at the
school accumulate 
10 or more credits 
towards graduation
as reported in the
NYC DOE School 
Quality Report. 

For each year of the
next charter term, 
the school will show 
progress towards
having 75% of
students enrolled in 
their 2nd year at the
school accumulate 
10 or more credits 
towards graduation
as reported in the
NYC DOE School 
Quality Report. 

For each year of the
next charter term, 
the school will show 
progress towards 

2019 were not 
publically available at
the time of this 
report. Instead, we
compared our 2019
results to the 
citywide results for
2018. 

At Equality Charter
High School, 77%
earned 10+ credits in 
their 1st year. 

*Note Our School Met Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report.
Instead, we used the 
2017 18 School 
Quality Report for
Equality Charter High
School. 

At Equality Charter
High School, 85%
earned 10+ credits in 
their 2nd year. 

*Note Our School Met Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report.
Instead, we used the 
2017 18 School 
Quality Report for
Equality Charter High
School. 

At Equality Charter
High School, 87%
earned 10+ credits in 
their 3rd year. 
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32 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
33 

having 75% of
students enrolled in 
their 3rd year at the
school accumulate 
10 or more credits 
towards graduation
as reported in the
NYC DOE School 
Quality Report. 

Each year ECMS will
receive a grade of
“Good” or “Excellent 
Standing” on the NYC
School Quality
Snapshot for:
1) “How well did this
school help All
Students at the 
school improve on
their State English
tests?” 
2) “How well did this
school help the
school’s Lowest 
Performing Students
improve on their
State English tests?”
3) “How well did this
school help English
Language Learners
improve on their
State English tests?”
4) “How well did this
school help Students
with Special Needs
improve on their
State English tests?
5) “How well did this
school help the City’s
Lowest Performing
Students improve on
their State English
tests?” 

Met *Note Our School 
Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report.
Instead, we used the 
2017 18 School 
Quality Report for
Equality Charter High
School. 

*Note Our School 
Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report. 

Not Applicable.
Results for 18 19 
have not been 
released. 

Each year ECMS will
receive a grade of
“Good” or “Excellent 
Standing” on the NYC
School Quality 

18 / 29 



	 	

	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	

34 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
35 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Snapshot for:
1) “How well did this
school help All
Students at the 
school improve on
their State Math 
tests?” 
2) “How well did this
school help the
school’s Lowest 
Performing Students
improve on their
State Math tests?” 
3) “How well did this
school help English
Language Learners
improve on their
State Math tests?” 
4) “How well did this
school help Students
with Special Needs
improve on their
State Math tests? 
5) “How well did this
school help the City’s
Lowest Performing
Students improve on
their State Math 
tests?” 

Each year, ECMS will
move students from 
all three starting
point (5th grade)
categories (level 1,
level 2, and level 3 or 
4) of the State
English test to all
three respective 8th
grade outcome
categories (scored
2,3,4; scored 3 or 4) 

Each year, ECMS will
move students from 
all three starting
point (5th grade)
categories (level 1,
level 2, and level 3 or 
4) of the State math
test to all three 
respective 8th grade
outcome categories
(scored 2,3,4; scored 

*Note Our School 
Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report. 

*Note Our School 
Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report. 

*Note Our School 
Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report. 

Not Applicable.
Results for 18 19 
have not been 
released. 

Not Applicable.
Results for 18 19 
have not been 
released. 

Not Applicable.
Results for 18 19 
have not been 
released. 
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37 

3 or 4) 

Each year, ECHS will
outperform its
comparison group on
the NYC School 
Quality Snapshot in
moving studentsAcadem from all three ic Goal starting point
categories (level 1,
level 2, and level 3 or 
4) of 8th grade to the
“College Ready” high
school outcome. 

*Note Our School 
Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report. 

*Note Our School 
Quality Report for
2018 19 was not yet
published at the time
of this report. 

Not Applicable.
Results for 18 19 
have not been 
released. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
38 

In each year of the
charter term, the 
school will 
demonstrate 
increased pass rates
on either the 
Integrated Algebra or
Common Core 
Algebra I Regents
exam. Goal will be 
applicable if six or
more students take 
either exam, and the 
same exam meets 
that threshold for at 
least two consecutive 
years. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 9 12) 

Not Applicable.
Results for 18 19 
have not been 
released. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
39 

Academ 
ic Goal 
40 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 
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Org
Goal 1 

Org
Goal 2 

Org
Goal 3 

Each year, the school
self reported average
daily student
attendance rate shall 
meet or exceed the 
average daily
attendance for the 
Community School
District (CSD) of
location for 
elementary and
middle schools and 
the citywide average
for high schools. 

Each year, the
percentage of
students enrolled in 
ATS on 10/31 of a
given school year
that are enrolled in 
ATS on 10/31 the
following school year
will exceed the rate 
of the Community
School District (CSD)
of location for 
elementary and
middle schools and 
the citywide average
for high schools. 

Each year, the school
will meet or exceed 
any applicable
student enrollment 
targets, as
prescribed by the
Board of Regents, for
English language
learners. 

Average daily
attendance was 
95.4% for 18 19. CSD 
data not available. 

ELL population for
18 19 year was
13.5% compared to
the districts target of
11.4%. 

Data from ECS 
Enrollment Targets: Met 
http://www.p12.nyse
d.gov/psc/enrollment
retention
targets.html as of 
9/10/19 based on MS
enrollment of 270 
and HS enrollment of 
360 

SWD population for
18 19 year was
23.3% compared to 
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Org
Goal 4 

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Each year, the school
will meet or exceed 
any applicable
student enrollment 
targets, as
prescribed by the
Board of Regents, for
students with 
disabilities. 

Each year, the school
will meet or exceed 
any applicable
student enrollment 
targets, as
prescribed by the
Board of Regents, for
students eligible for
free and reduced 
price lunch. 

Each year, the school
will meet or exceed 
any applicable
student retention 
targets, as
prescribed by the
Board of Regents, for
English language
learners. 

Each year, the school
will meet or exceed 
any applicable
student retention 
targets, as 

the districts target of
22.2% 

Data from ECS 
Enrollment Targets:
http://www.p12.nyse
d.gov/psc/enrollment
retention
targets.html as of 
9/10/19 based on MS
enrollment of 270 
and HS enrollment of 
360 

84% of our student 
body receives free or
reduced price lunch. 

Data from ECS 
Enrollment Targets:
http://www.p12.nyse
d.gov/psc/enrollment
retention
targets.html as of 
9/10/19 based on MS
enrollment of 270 
and HS enrollment of 
360 

88% of our ELL 
scholars 
returned/stayed in
our school 

Data from ECS 
Enrollment Targets:
http://www.p12.nyse
d.gov/psc/enrollment
retention
targets.html as of 
9/10/19 based on MS
enrollment of 270 
and HS enrollment of 
360 

Our retention rate for 
SWD students was 
94% 

Data from ECS 
Enrollment Targets:
http://www.p12.nyse
d.gov/psc/enrollment 

Met 

Met 

Met 

Met 
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prescribed by the
Board of Regents, for
students with 
disabilities. 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Each year, the school
will meet or exceed 
any applicable
student retention 
targets, as
prescribed by the
Board of Regents, for
students eligible for
free and reduced 
price lunch. 

In each year of the
charter term, parents
will express
satisfaction with the 
school’s program,
based on the NYC 
DOE School Survey.
The school will have 
a percentage of
parents that meets
or exceeds citywide
averages in Top 2
box responses (i.e.,
agree/strongly agree,
likely/very likely). The
school will only have
met this goal if at
least 50% of parents
participate in the
survey or if the
school meets the 
reporting threshold
for NYC DOE School 
Survey, whichever is
higher. 

retention
targets.html as of 
9/10/19 based on MS
enrollment of 270 
and HS enrollment of 
360 

Our retention rate for 
students eligible for
school lunch was 
84% 

Data from ECS 
Enrollment Targets:
http://www.p12.nyse Met 
d.gov/psc/enrollment
retention
targets.html as of 
9/10/19 based on MS
enrollment of 270 
and HS enrollment of 
360 

62% of parents
participated in the
18 19 survey. 

Met https://tools.nycenet.
edu/guide/2019/#db
n=84X488&report_ty
pe=HS 

In each year of the
charter term, staff 
will express
satisfaction with the 
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Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

school’s program,
based on the NYC 
DOE School Survey.
The school will have 
a percentage of
parents that meets
or exceeds citywide
averages in Top 2
box responses (i.e.,
agree/strongly agree,
likely/very likely). The
school will only have
met this goal if at
least 50% of staff 
participate in the
survey or if the
school meets the 
reporting threshold
for NYC DOE School 
Survey, whichever is
higher. 

In each year of the
charter term, 
students will express
satisfaction with the 
school’s program,
based on the NYC 
DOE School Survey.
The school will have 
a percentage of
parents that meets
or exceeds citywide
averages in Top 2
box responses (i.e.,
agree/strongly agree,
likely/very likely). The
school will only have
met this goal if at
least 50% of students 
participate in the
survey or if the
school meets the 
reporting threshold
for NYC DOE School 
Survey, whichever is
higher. (Relevant for
schools serving
grades 6 12 only) 

Each year, 95% of
instructional staff will 
engage in an ongoing
evaluation process 

79% of the staff 
participated in the
18 19 survey. 

Met https://tools.nycenet.
edu/guide/2019/#db
n=84X488&report_ty
pe=HS 

92% of the students 
completed the 18 19 
survey. 

Met https://tools.nycenet.
edu/guide/2019/#db
n=84X488&report_ty
pe=HS 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system, 
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Org that includes regular more than 95% of Met observations and Goal 12 active instructional 
feedback resulting in staff engaged in the
mid year and end of observation and 
year observations evaluation process. 
and/or evaluations. 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

95% of instructional 
staff who receive a 
rating as ineffective,
developing, or nearly
effective will be 
provided with
corrective action to 
address their areas 
of 
weakness/deficiency. 

95% of instructional 
staff who receive a 
rating of effective or
highly effective:
1. may receive a
financial bonus 
2. may have the
opportunity to
facilitate a 
professional
development session
whole staff, small

group, peer to peer
3. may enjoy
receiving greater
autonomy in lesson
planning and
curriculum 
development
4. may/will be asked
to support others in
the organization
around building their
skills in areas where 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system, in
coordination with our 
professional
development
tracking records,
over 95% of active 
instructional staff 
whose ratings were
less than effective 
received professional
development,
coaching and other
corrective actions to 
address needed 
areas. 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system, in
coordination with our 
professional
development
tracking records,
over 95% of active 
instructional staff 
whose ratings were
effective or better: 
1. received the 
highest bonuses
(contingent upon
returning the
following school
year)
2. were asked to lead 
or colead 
professional
development, when
appropriate
3. received greater
autonomy in lesson
planning and
curriculum 
development, when
appropriate
4. were or will be 

Met 

Met 
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Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

these staff members 
excel 
5. may be provided
with role expansion
opportunities 

Each year, 95% of
non teaching staff
will engage in an
end of year
evaluation process. 

Each year, 95% of
non teaching staff
who receive a rating
as ineffective, 
developing, or nearly
effective and receive 
a renewal will be 
provided with
corrective action to 
address their areas 
of 
weakness/deficiency. 

Each year, 95% of
non teaching staff
who receive a rating
of effective or highly
effective: 
1. may receive a
financial bonus 
2. may have the
opportunity to 

asked to support
others with their 
skillset, when 
appropriate
5. were or will be 
considered for role 
expansion
opportunities, when
appropriate. 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system,
more than 95% of Met active non
instructional staff 
engaged in the
evaluation process. 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system, in
coordination with our 
professional
development
tracking records,
over 95% of active 
non instructional Met staff whose ratings
were less than 
effective received 
professional
development,
coaching and other
corrective actions to 
address needed 
areas. 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system, in
coordination with our 
professional
development
tracking records,
over 95% of active 
non instructional 
staff whose ratings
were effective or 
better: 
1. received the 
highest bonuses
(contingent upon 
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Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

facilitate a 
professional
development session
whole staff, small

group, peer to peer
3. may enjoy greater
autonomy in their
roles, as applicable
4. may be asked to
support others in the
organization around
building their skills in
areas where these 
staff members excel 
5. may be provided
with role expansion
opportunities 

Each year, 95% of
staff will engage in
an ongoing
evaluation process
that includes regular
observations and 
feedback resulting in
mid year and end of
year observations
and/or evaluations. 

Each year, 95% of
staff who receive a 
rating below
proficiency will be
provided with
corrective action to 
address their areas 
of 
weakness/deficiency. 

returning the
following school
year)
2. were asked to lead 
or co lead 
professional
development, when
appropriate
3. received greater
autonomy in work
production, when
appropriate
4. were or will be 
asked to support
others with their 
skillset, when 
appropriate
5. were or will be 
considered for role 
expansion
opportunities, when
appropriate. 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system,
more than 95% of 
active, eligible staff
engaged in the
evaluation process. 

As recorded in our 
online evaluation 
tracking system, in
coordination with our 
professional
development
tracking records,
over 95% of active, 
eligible staff whose
ratings were below
proficiency received
professional
development,
coaching and other
corrective actions to 
address needed 
areas. 

Met 

Met 

Met 

As recorded in our 
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Org
Goal 20 

Each year, 95% of
staff will engage in
an end of year
evaluation process.
95% of staff who 
receive a rating
below proficiency
and receive a 
renewal will be 
provided with
corrective action to 
address their areas 
of 
weakness/deficiency. 

online evaluation 
tracking system, in
coordination with our 
professional
development
tracking records,
over 95% of active, 
eligible staff whose
ratings were below
proficiency received
professional
development,
coaching and other
corrective actions to 
address needed 
areas. 

Met 

5. Do have more organizational No 

goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

Financia 
l Goal 1 

Each year, the school
will maintain a stable 
cash flow as 
evidenced by having
60 days of
unrestricted cash on 
hand reported in
their yearly
independent fiscal
audit. 

Audited unrestricted 
cash balance as of 
6/30/19 ($3,024,396)
was greater than 2
months (16.7%) of
total expenses noted
on audited statement 
of activities for FY19 
($13,329,500), which
is equivalent to
$2,226,026. In 
previous years,
average month end
unrestricted cash 
balances were 
greater than 2
months of expenses. 

Met 

Each year, the school
will operate on a
balanced budget. A Equality has

Financia budget will be consistently Met l Goal 2 considered budgeted at 2 4% 
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“balanced” if surplus since 2009. 
revenues equal or
exceed expenditures. 

Each year, the school
with meet or exceed 
85% of their 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

authorized 
enrollment on 10/31
as recorded in ATS. 
(This goal applies
only to schools that
are no longer
“growing” grades
within the current 
charter term.) 

The school will 
undergo an annual,
independent financial
audit that will result 
in an unqualified
opinion and no major
findings. 

Since 2009, Equality
has maintained 
healthy enrollments
and continues to 
backfill openings
throughout the year. 

Met 

Met through financial Met audit. 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 

Thank you. 

29 / 29 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/17/2019 • Last updated: 07/24/2019 

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 13362895 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 637 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 20991 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

1570764 

192278 

1763042 

2769 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Equality Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Equality Charter School (the “School”), 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 



 

 
 

 
  

   
    

       
 

 
 

 
   

   
  

    
     

   
        

  
 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Equality Charter School as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its 
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
25, 2019, on our consideration of Equality Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Equality Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, NY
October 25, 2019 



  
                        

                      
                      

                    
              
                            

  

  
          

                                

              

              

  

 

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Cash - restricted 
Grants and other receivables 
Due from New York City Department of Education 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Property and equipment, net 
Website, net 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Deferred rent 
Due to New York City Department of Education 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2019 

3,024,396 
72,957 

761,853 
10,885 

155,227 
3,262,362 

1,489 

7,289,169 

152,743 
748,628 
360,003 

-

1,261,374 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2018 

1,988,772 
72,265 

986,635 
-

165,859 
3,583,099 

6,650 

6,803,280 

491,423 
667,863 
288,003 
158,627 

1,605,916 

NET ASSETS - WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

$ 

6,027,795 

7,289,169 $ 

5,197,364 

6,803,280 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2019 2018 

OPERATING REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Other per pupil operating revenue 
Government grants and contracts 

$ 12,202,673 
246,170 

1,541,533 

13,990,376 

$ 11,039,232 
190,378 

1,531,215 

12,760,825 

EXPENSES 
Program services: 

General education 
Special education 

Management and general 
Fundraising 

7,499,604 
4,238,851 
1,557,337 

33,708 

13,329,500 

7,900,510 
3,299,995 
1,572,900 

34,123 

12,807,528 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 660,876 (46,703) 

SUPPORT AND OTHER INCOME 
Interest and miscellaneous income 
Special events income, net of direct expenses ($47,881 in 2019, $52,120 in 2018) 

158,591 
10,964 

260,143 
72,214 

169,555 332,357 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 830,431 285,654 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,197,364 4,911,710 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 6,027,795 $ 5,197,364 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Program Services Supporting Services 

No. of 
Positions 

General 
Education 

Special 
Education Total 

Management 
and General Fundraising 2019 

Personnel service costs 
Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

Total salaries and staff 
   Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
   Retirement 
   Legal services 
   Accounting and audit services 
   Other purchases of professional and consulting services 
   Rent 
   Repairs and maintenance 
   Insurance 
   Utilities 
   Instructional supplies and materials 
   Equipment and furnishings 
   Staff development 
   Marketing and recruitment 
   Technology 
   Food service 
   Student services 
   Office expense 
   Depreciation and amortization 
   Other 
   Cost of direct benefit to donors 

22 
70 
24 

116 

$ 467,694 
2,424,214 
1,484,349 
4,376,257 

784,451 
155,418 

22,554 
-

220,448 
541,117 
64,479 

125,264 
148,626 
223,338 

4,111 
119,975 

39,855 
31,527 

5,353 
83,559 

144,300 
404,280 

4,692 
-

$ 82,883 $ 
1,998,782 

933,608 
3,015,273 

540,492 
107,084 

5,935 
-

58,172 
142,399 

16,968 
32,964 
39,112 
59,320 

1,088 
31,871 
10,594 

8,348 
1,423 

22,210 
37,974 

106,389 
1,235 

-

550,577 
4,422,996 
2,417,957 
7,391,530 
1,324,943 

262,502 
28,489 

-
278,620 
683,516 

81,447 
158,228 
187,738 
282,658 

5,199 
151,846 

50,449 
39,875 

6,776 
105,769 
182,274 
510,669 

5,927 
-

$ 1,083,798 $ 5,920 
- -
- -

1,083,798 5,920 
194,272 1,061 

38,490 210 
890 297 

35,945 -
120,810 6,829 
21,360 7,120 

2,545 848 
4,945 1,648 
5,867 1,956 

718 239 
75 25 

25,267 105 
- -

477 159 
- -

34 11 
5,696 1,899 

15,958 5,319 
190 62 

- 47,881 

$ 1,640,295 
4,422,996 
2,417,957 
8,481,248
1,520,276

301,202
29,676
35,945

406,259
711,996

84,840
164,821
195,561
283,615

5,299
177,218

50,449
40,511

6,776
105,814
189,869
531,946

6,179
47,881 

7,499,604 4,238,851 11,738,455 1,557,337 81,589 13,377,381 

Less: Expenses deducted directly from 
support on the statement of activities - - - - (47,881) (47,881) 

$ 7,499,604 $ 4,238,851 $ 11,738,455 $ 1,557,337 $ 33,708 $ 13,329,500 

Percentage of total expenses 56.26% 31.80% 88.06% 11.68% 0.26% 100.00% 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Personnel service costs 
Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

Total salaries and staff 
   Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
   Retirement 
   Legal services 
   Accounting and audit services 
   Other purchases of professional and consulting services 
   Rent 
   Repairs and maintenance 
   Insurance 
   Utilities 
   Instructional supplies and materials 
   Equipment and furnishings 
   Staff development 
   Marketing and recruitment 
   Technology 
   Food service 
   Student services 
   Office expense 
   Depreciation and amortization 
   Other 
   Cost of direct benefit to donors 

Less: Expenses deducted directly from 
support on the statement of activities 

Percentage of total expenses 

No. of 
Positions 

23 
66 
22 

111 

Program Services 

General Special 
Education Education 

$ 464,972 $ 82,400 $ 
2,619,239 1,378,268 
1,442,982 728,022 
4,527,193 2,188,690 

835,609 403,978 
169,893 82,135 
11,077 2,915 

- -
219,954 58,116 
541,117 142,399 
36,074 9,493 

121,765 32,043 
140,388 36,944 
259,526 68,944 

8,505 2,246 
151,625 40,234 
46,115 12,258 
29,387 7,786 

182,270 48,451 
78,523 20,867 

151,466 39,859 
389,387 102,470 

636 167 
- -

7,900,510 3,299,995 

- -

$ 7,900,510 $ 3,299,995 $ 

61.69% 25.76% 

Total 

547,372 
3,997,507 
2,171,004 
6,715,883 
1,239,587 

252,028 
13,992 

-
278,070 
683,516 
45,567 

153,808 
177,332 
328,470 
10,751 

191,859 
58,373 
37,173 

230,721 
99,390 

191,325 
491,857 

803 
-

11,200,505 

-

11,200,505 

87.45% 

Supporting Services 

Management 
and General Fundraising 

$ 1,099,107 $ 5,886 
- -
- -

1,099,107 5,886 
202,868 1,086 
41,246 221 

437 146 
24,015 -

110,205 7,811 
21,360 7,120 
1,424 475 
4,807 1,602 
5,542 1,847 

658 219 
219 73 

39,160 353 
- -

386 129 
- -

91 30 
5,979 1,993 

15,371 5,124 
25 8 

- 52,120 

1,572,900 86,243 

- (52,120) 

$ 1,572,900 $ 34,123 

12.28% 0.27% 

$ 

$ 

2018 

1,652,365 
3,997,507 
2,171,004 
7,820,876
1,443,541

293,495
14,575
24,015

396,086
711,996
47,466

160,217
184,721
329,347
11,043

231,372
58,373
37,688

230,721
99,511

199,297
512,352

836
52,120 

12,859,648 

(52,120) 

12,807,528 

100.00% 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from operating revenue $ 14,045,646 $ 12,797,772 
Other cash received 169,555 332,357 
Cash paid to employees and suppliers (12,972,837) (12,265,379) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,242,364 864,750 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property, equipment and construction (206,048) (268,708) 
Purchase of website - (2,203) 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (206,048) (270,911) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 1,036,316 593,839 

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,061,037 1,467,198 

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - END OF YEAR $ 3,097,353 $ 2,061,037 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Change in net assets $ 830,431 $ 285,654 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 531,946 512,352 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Grants and other receivables 224,782 (5,433) 
Due from New York City Department of Education (10,885) -
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,632 75,640 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (338,680) (192,088) 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 80,765 74,245 
Deferred rent 72,000 72,000 
Due to New York City Department of Education (158,627) 42,380 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,242,364 $ 864,750 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 

Non-cash investing activities: 
Construction in progress placed into service and included in property and equipment $ - $ 44,322 

Cash and cash - restricted consist of: 
Cash $ 3,024,396 $ 1,988,772 
Cash - restricted 72,957 72,265 

$ 3,097,353 $ 2,061,037 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

1. NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION 

Equality Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit educational corporation that was 
incorporated on January 13, 2009 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 56 of the Educational Law of the 
State of New York in the North Bronx. The School was granted a provisional charter on January 13, 2009 by the 
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. This charter was renewed through June 30, 2020. 

The School, which opened its doors in the fall of 2009, operates a college preparatory academic program and a 
highly structured and supportive school culture. While the School is comprised of students from many 
backgrounds, it is uniquely designed to close the achievement gap in middle school and high school, by 
preparing students to be successful in college by focusing on the integration of goal setting, critical thinking and 
problem solving skills. 

The School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, is exempt from federal income tax under Section 
501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and 
under the corresponding provisions of the New York State tax laws. The School has also been classified as an 
entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for deductible 
contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC. 

The School operates classes for students in sixth through twelfth grades. 

The New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) provides free lunches and transportation directly to a 
majority of the School’s students.   

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). 

The classification of the School’s net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the existence 
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  It requires that the amounts for each of the two classes of net assets – 
with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions – be displayed in a statement of financial position and that the 
amount of change in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities. 

These classes are defined as follows: 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is subject 
to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits reflecting the nature of the not-for-
profit entity, the environment in which it operates and the purposes specified in its articles of incorporation 
or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-imposed restrictions may be temporary in nature, such as 
stipulating that resources may be used only after a specified date or limited to specific programs or services. 
Certain donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature. 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is not 
subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both contributions not subject to 
donor restrictions and exchange transactions, such as state and local per pupil operating revenue. 

Cash - Restricted 

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, an escrow account of $72,957 and $72,265, respectively, has been held aside for 
contingency purposes as required by the NYCDOE. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Grants and Other Receivables 

Grants and other receivables represent amounts due from federal and state entitlements and grants and other 
miscellaneous entities. Grants and other receivables are expected to be collected within one year, are recorded 
at net realizable value, and amount to $761,853 and $986,635 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The 
School evaluates the collectability of the receivables and employs the allowance method. The School has 
determined that no allowance for uncollectible accounts for grants and other receivables is necessary at June 30, 
2019 and 2018. Such estimate is based on management’s assessment of the creditworthiness of its grantors, the 
aged basis of its receivables, as well as current economic conditions and historical information.  

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from state and local governments is based on the number of students enrolled and is recorded when 
services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. Funds received in advance for which qualifying expenditures 
have not been incurred are reflected as due to NYCDOE in the accompanying statements of financial position. 

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the NYCDOE. If the charter school 
laws were modified, reducing or eliminating these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely 
affected. 

Special Events 

The School conducts special events in which a portion of the gross proceeds paid by the participant represents 
payment for the direct cost of the benefits received by the participant at the event (such as meals and 
entertainment). Unless a verifiable, objective means exists to demonstrate otherwise, the fair value of those direct 
costs provided at special events is measured at the actual cost to the School. All proceeds received in excess of 
the direct costs are recorded as special events support in the accompanying statements of activities. For the year 
ended June 30, 2019, the School reported special events income of $58,845 and expenses of $47,881. For the 
year ended June 30, 2018, the School reported special events income of $124,334 and expenses of $52,120. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets (Note 5). Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of 
the improvement or term of the lease. The School has established a $1,000 threshold above which assets are 
evaluated to be capitalized. Property and equipment acquired with certain government contract funds are 
recorded as an expense pursuant to the terms of the contract in which the government funding source retains 
ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; major renewals and 
betterments are capitalized. 

Impairment 

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  If the sum of the 
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the School recognizes an 
impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis. 
Expenses that can be directly identified with the program or supporting service to which they relate are charged 
accordingly. Other expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting service 
classifications based upon benefits received. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Subsequent Events 

The School has evaluated events through October 25, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Income Taxes 

The School follows the accounting standard for uncertainty in income taxes. The standard prescribes a minimum 
recognition threshold and measurement methodology that a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax 
return is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. It also provides guidance for 
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, disclosure and transition. 

The School files informational returns in the federal jurisdiction. With few exceptions, the School is no longer 
subject to federal income tax examinations for fiscal years before 2016. 

The School believes that it has appropriate support for the positions taken on its tax returns. Nonetheless, the 
amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of the issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ materially 
from the amounts accrued for each year. Management believes that its nonprofit status would be sustained upon 
examination.  

Should there be interest on underpayments of income tax, the School would classify it as interest expense. The 
School would classify penalties in connection with underpayments of income tax as other expense. 

The School is subject to tax reportable on Form 990T consisting of unrelated business income if they have 
provided pre-tax transportation benefits to employees. 

Deferred Rent 

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, 
including future escalations of rent, rather than in accordance with lease payments. Deferred rent represents the 
adjustment to future rents as a result of using the straight-line method. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Adoption of Accounting Pronouncement 

Financial Statement Presentation 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School adopted Accounting Standards Update 2016-14, Not-for-Profit 
Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update amends the 
current reporting model for not-for-profit organizations and enhances their required disclosures. The major 
changes include, but are not limited to: (a) requiring the presentation of two classes of net assets now titled “net 
assets without donor restrictions” and “net assets with donor restrictions,” (b) modifying the presentation of 
underwater endowment funds and related disclosures, (c) requiring the use of the placed in service approach to 
recognize the expirations on gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent explicit donor restrictions 
otherwise, (d) requiring the presentation of an analysis of expenses by function and nature, (e) requiring the 
disclosure of information regarding liquidity and availability of resources, and (f) presenting investment return net 
of external and direct internal investment expenses. In addition, the update removes the requirement that 
statements of cash flows using the direct method also present a reconciliation consistent with the indirect method. 
The School has applied the update retrospectively to all periods presented and adjusted the presentation of these 
financial statements accordingly. As a result, the School reclassified amounts formerly classified as unrestricted 
net assets to net assets without donor restrictions. The adoption of this update had no other material effect on the 
School’s financial position and changes in net assets. In addition, the School has elected to continue to present a 
reconciliation in the statement of cash flows consistent with the indirect method. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update which 
affects the revenue recognition of entities that enter into either (1) certain contracts to transfer goods or services 
to customers or (2) certain contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets. The update indicates an entity should 
recognize revenue in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
the goods or services transferred by the entity. The update is to be applied to the beginning of the year of 
implementation or retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and in 
interim periods in annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted but no earlier 
than annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2016. The School is currently evaluating the effect 
the update will have on its financial statements. 

In June 2018, the FASB issued an accounting standards update in an effort to clarify and improve the scope and 
the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The FASB believes the update 
should assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (non-
reciprocal transactions) within the scope of not-for-profit guidance, or as an exchange (reciprocal) transaction 
subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional or not. The update is effective 
on a modified prospective basis for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within 
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted. The School is currently 
evaluating the potential accounting, transition, and disclosure effects the update will have on its financial 
statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which amends existing lease guidance. The 
update requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and related lease liability for many operating leases 
now currently off-balance-sheet under current U.S. GAAP.  Also, the FASB has issued amendments to the 
update with practical expedients related to land easements, lessor accounting, and disclosures related to 
accounting changes and error corrections. The School is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on its 
financial statements but expects upon adoption that the update will have a material effect on the School’s 
financial position due to the recognition of a right-of-use asset and related lease liability. The School does not 
anticipate the update having a material effect on the School’s results of operations or cash flows, though such an 
effect is possible. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 

The update originally required transition to the new lease guidance using a modified retrospective approach 
which would reflect the application of the update as of the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. 
A subsequent amendment to the update provides an optional transition method that allows entities to initially 
apply the new lease guidance with a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of equity in the period 
of adoption. If this optional transition method is elected, after the adoption of the new lease guidance, the 
School’s presentation of comparative periods in the financial statements will continue to be in accordance with 
current lease accounting. The School is evaluating the method of adoption it will elect. The update is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2021, with early application permitted.  

3. LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES 

The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, 
liabilities and other obligations come due. The School maintains deposit accounts with multiple distinct banks in 
order to maintain liquidity, benefit from Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation protection and to collect interest 
income. 

The School’s financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for general 
expenditures are as follows:

 2019 2018 
Cash 
Cash - restricted 
Grants and other receivables 
Due from NYC Department of Education 

$ 3,024,396 
72,957 

761,853 
10,885 

$ 1,988,772 
72,265 

986,635 
-

Total financial assets  3,870,091 3,047,672 

Less amount unavailable for general expenditures  
within one year due to: 
        Restricted by contract with time or purpose (72,957) (72,265) 

              Total financial assets available to management for  
general expenditures within one year $ 3,797,134 $ 2,975,407 

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School has no board designated net assets. 

4. AGREEMENT FOR SCHOOL FACILITY 

The School has entered into a verbal agreement (the “Agreement”) with the NYCDOE for dedicated and shared 
space at PS 160, a New York City Public School located at 4140 Hutchinson River Parkway East, Bronx, New 
York, at a cost of $1 per year. Approximately 23,000 square feet is allocated to the School. The fair value of the 
rent has not been included in the accompanying financial statements as the premises are temporary in nature, 
the Agreement is non-binding, the premises constitute excess shared space whereby a fair value cannot be 
determined, and such exclusion is industry practice. 

The School will be responsible for any overtime-related costs for services provided beyond the regular opening 
hours. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School did not incur any permit fees. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

Estimated 
2019 2018 Useful Lives 

Furniture and fixtures $ 741,189 $ 699,817 7 years 
Computers 682,716 596,587 5 years 
Equipment 296,524 273,374 5 years 
Software 125,577 125,577 3 years 
Leasehold improvements 3,535,380 3,479,983 Life of lease 

5,381,386 5,175,338 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and (2,119,024) (1,592,239)
         amortization $ 3,262,362 $ 3,583,099 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $526,785 and 
$504,018, respectively. 

6. WEBSITE 

Development costs related to the School’s website amounting to $29,771 have been capitalized as of June 30, 
2019 and 2018. These costs are being amortized over the estimated life of three years using the straight-line 
method. Amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $5,161 and $8,334, 
respectively. Accumulated amortization totaled $28,282 and $23,121 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

7. RETIREMENT PLAN 

The School maintains a defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “Plan”) which covers most of the 
employees. Employees are eligible to enroll in the Plan either the first day of the month that coincides with or next 
follows the date that one first satisfies the 21-year age requirement. The School’s matching contribution vests as 
follows:  

1st Year: 0% 
2nd Year: 50% 
3rd Year: 100% 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, retirement expense for the School was $301,202 and $293,495, 
respectively, which is included in retirement in the accompanying statements of functional expenses. 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to help protect itself 
from such risks. 

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The governmental 
agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as well as additional funds for 
the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the possible disallowance or 
refund. 

The School’s charter is up for renewal in June 2020. Although the School anticipates that this renewal will be 
granted by the authorizers, no assurance can be provided that this will occur. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

9. CONCENTRATIONS 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash accounts at 
a major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limit of 
$250,000. 

The School received approximately 86% and 84% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the NYCDOE 
during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Three major grantors accounted for approximately 95% and 86% of grants and other receivables at June 30, 
2019 and 2018, respectively. 

There were no major vendors included in accounts payable at June 30, 2019. Four vendors accounted for 
approximately 56% of accounts payable at June 30, 2018. 

10. COMMITMENTS 

In September 2013, the School entered into a long-term operating lease expiring in 2028 to accommodate its 
expansion to add a high school for the 2014-2015 school year. For the period from September 2013 to June 
2014, the School was only responsible for paying utilities. The School began paying rent and occupying the 
space in July 2014. During fiscal year 2019, base rent expense amounted to $53,333 per month. Future minimum 
lease payments, pursuant to this lease agreement, are as follows: 

June 30, 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 

$ 720,000 
720,000 
720,000 
720,000 
720,000 

3,168,000 

$ 6,768,000 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government 
Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
Equality Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Equality Charter School (the “School”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an 
instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and is described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as finding 2019-01. 

The School’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and responses. The School’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the School in a separate letter dated October 25, 
2019. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

           
   

  
           

  
 
 
 
 

  
 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, NY 
October 25, 2019 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  
 
  
 
    
  
  
   
  
    
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 

 
 
 

 
  

 

  

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

JUNE 30, 2019 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements 
were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness (es) identified?    
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not     
    considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?      

yes 

yes 
yes 

______ 

______ 
__√___ 

no 

no 
no 

___√___ 

___√___ 
_______ 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING 

Finding: 2019-01 

Criteria and condition: The School is required to be in compliance with the New York State Education 
Department (“NYSED”) requirements. The teacher certification exemption allows charter schools to have up to 
15 uncertified teachers. The School had 30 teachers that were uncertified.  

Context: NYSED requires the School to have no more than 15 uncertified teachers, with the provision that five 
of these teachers are teaching math, science, computer science, technology, or career and technical 
education, with the remaining ten teachers not restricted. 

Cause: Due to various external factors, management has been unable to consistently recruit and retain the 
requisite numbers of certified teachers in order to be in compliance with NYSED requirements. 

Effect: The School can be under additional scrutiny from the New York City Department of Education for not 
being in compliance with the NYSED requiring teachers to be qualified through certification. 

Recommendation: We recommend the School review its hiring and recruitment procedures and retention 
policies so as to be in compliance with the NYSED teacher qualification requirements. 

SECTION III – VIEWS OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS AND PLANNED CORRECTIVE ACTION 

Finding: 2019-01 

Management recognizes and acknowledges the finding regarding the noncompliance with teacher certification 
requirements during fiscal year 2019. Management reflects upon the following factors which hamper our ability 
to recruit and retain certified teachers: the School’s location, lack of pension, smaller benefits group size, pay 
scale and extended work hours, as compared to NYCDOE. Management strives to overcome these hampering 
factors to comply with teacher certification requirements to the best of our ability. Management has 
implemented new protocols to strive to ensure compliance, including, but not limited to the following: a new 
tuition reimbursement benefit prioritizing requests from teachers seeking certifications, hosting annual 
recruitment fairs onsite and increasing pipeline for certification through student teaching programs, and 
conducting intensive Stay Panels focusing on teacher retention. In addition, the School continues to contract 
with NYC Charter Center for certification monitoring and guidance services. Management continues to require 
mandatory one-on-one meetings with all uncertified staff members to ensure that significant progress towards 
certification in a timely manner; and continues retraining hiring and recruitment staff on the importance of 
certification compliance. Like many charter schools in New York City, Equality Charter School is striving to 
provide high quality education despite the scarcity of certified teachers available in the candidate pool. 
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EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING 

Finding No: 2018-01 

Condition: The School is required to be in compliance with the New York State Education Department 
(“NYSED”) requirements. The teacher certification exemption allows charter schools to have up to 15 uncertified 
teachers. The School had 24 teachers that were uncertified.  

Current Status: 

The finding has not been corrected, see Finding No. 2019-01. 
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Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 10/29/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118806728/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118806728/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading The school did not expend federal funds in excess of the 

the Federal Single Audit. threshold 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading The school did not receive CSP 

the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118806728/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118806728/JDKdnGTC4H/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 





  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
             

      
     

   
          

 
 

 
 

     
 

    
   

     
         

    
    

         
  

     
  

    
 

 
      

 
  

  
 

   
 

       
 

   
 

   
             

          
  

 
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

October 25, 2019 

To the Audit Committee 
Equality Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Equality Charter School (the “School”) for the year ended 
June 30, 2019 and are prepared to issue our report thereon dated October 25, 2019. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit. This letter is 
divided into two sections:  1) required communications from the auditors to those with audit oversight 
responsibilities and 2) opportunities for strengthening internal controls or enhancing operating efficiency 
and our related recommendations. 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards: 

As stated in our engagement letter dated April 9, 2019, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management 
with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or 
management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Equality Charter School. 
Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to 
provide any assurance concerning such internal control. We are responsible for communicating 
significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your 
responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not required to design 
procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

B. Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit: 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you 
in our meeting about planning matters in June 2019. 

C. Auditor Independence: 

We affirm that MBAF CPAs, LLC is independent with respect to Equality Charter School. 

D. Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices: 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance 
with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of 
accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the School are 
described in Note 2 to the financial statements. As described therein, the School elected to implement 
the application of an accounting pronouncement pertaining to accounting for uncertain tax positions. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized 
in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred. 



 

    
 

         
    

      
 

   
 

 
  

            
    

 
    

          
    

 
 

     
      
     

 
 

 
           

    
       

 
 

   
 

  
     

 
 

    
  

 
   
 

 
 

  
         

   
 

 
 

   
    

 
             

   
 

   

E. Accounting Estimates Used in the Financial Statements: 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial 
statements were: 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: 
As of June 30, 2019, Equality Charter School recorded grants and other receivables of 
$761,853. Management concluded that no allowance for doubtful accounts was necessary. 
Management calculated based on the assessment of the credit-worthiness of the School’s donors, 
the aged basis of the receivables, as well as economic conditions and historical information. Based 
on our audit procedures which included a discussion with the CFO and a review of subsequent 
collections during our audit testing, we concur with management’s conclusion. 

Functional Statement Allocation: 
Management's estimate of the allocation of functional expenses is directly identified with the 
program or supporting service to which they relate. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

Depreciation: 
Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on estimated useful lives of assets. We 
evaluated the estimated useful lives of assets in comparison to generally accepted accounting 
principles in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

F. Sensitive Disclosures Affecting the Financial Statements: 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial 
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users. The most sensitive disclosure(s) affecting the financial statements were: 

The disclosure of Risk Management in Note 8 to the financial statements which describes various 
risks to which the School is exposed. 

G. Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements: 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during 
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Except as made known to you, management has corrected all such misstatements. In 
addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by 
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. We will identify those adjustments proposed both corrected and uncorrected: 

Proposed and Corrected: 

In the current year, there were two entries prepared by management: 
1. To accrue the remaining portion of the fiscal year 2019 audit fee, which decreased net assets by 

$19,950. 
2. To adjust the book balance of the TD checking account for a deposit of $19,422 that was dated 

incorrectly. This entry had no effect on net assets. 

In the prior year, there were no audit adjustments. 



 

  
 

     
 

    
 

    
   

 
 

   
 
  

 
       

  
 

  
 

    
 

 
 
 

   
 

   
 

    
    

            
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed and Uncorrected: 

There were no entries that were proposed and uncorrected during the current or prior fiscal years. 

H. Audit Difficulties and Disagreements with Management: 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. 

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

I. Management Representations: 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 25, 2019. 

J. Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants: 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the School's financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

K. Other Audit Findings or Issues: 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School's auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 
were not a condition to our retention. 



 

 
 

 
    

 
 

    
           

    
   

 
    

  
 

 
       

 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 

OPPORTUNITIES FOR STRENGTHENING INTERNAL CONTROLS OR ENHANCING OPERATING 
EFFICIENCY 

Please note: Comments with an asterisk (*) were communicated in the prior fiscal year. 

*School Facility Lease Agreement: 
Through conversations with the School’s Consultant, we have been informed that a formal written 
agreement between Equality Charter School and the New York City Department of Education does not 
exist. We recommend that the School periodically re-explore the risks of such a relationship. Please note 
that we have been informed that this issue is present for all New York charter schools. 

We wish to thank management and personnel for their support and assistance during our audit. We would 
be pleased to further discuss the contents of this report with you at your convenience. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, Board of Trustees, and management 
of Equality Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MBAF CPAs, LLC 
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ODUPCFS 25, 2019  
 

MBAF ERE LLP  
ADDPVOUBOUT & AEWJTPST  
440 PBSL AWFOVF SPVUI  
NFX :PSL, N: 10016  
 

DFBS MBAF,  
 

ERVBMJUZ CIBSUFS SDIPPM IBT SFWJFXFE UIF BVEJUFE GJOBODJBM TUBUFNFOUT, SFRVJSFE DPNNVOJDBUJPOT BOE  
PQQPSUVOJUJFT GPS TUSFOHUIFOJOH PQFSBUJPOBM FGGJDJFODZ BOE JOUFSOBM DPOUSPMT PVUMJOFE JO ZPVS MFUUFS  
EBUFE ODUPCFS 25, 2019. WF BSF XSJUJOH UP GPMMPX-VQ PO UIF JUFN MJTUFE JO ZPVS AVEJU SVNNBSZ  
EPDVNFOU UJUMFE ǣSDIFEVMF PG FJOEJOHT.Ǥ TIF SFTQPOTFT CFMPX BSF JO SFGFSFODF UP QBHF 17 PG ZPVS  
EPDVNFOU.  
 

Managementǡs Response to MBAFǡs Finding re: Compliance Xith NYSEDǡs Teacher  
Certification Requirements  

 
Certifications  

● MBOBHFNFOU SFDPHOJ[FT BOE BDLOPXMFEHFT UIF GJOEJOH SFHBSEJOH UIF OPODPNQMJBODF XJUI  
UFBDIFS DFSUJGJDBUJPO SFRVJSFNFOUT EVSJOH GJTDBM ZFBS 2019. MBOBHFNFOU SFGMFDUT VQPO UIF  
GPMMPXJOH GBDUPST XIJDI IBNQFS PVS BCJMJUZ UP SFDSVJU BOE SFUBJO DFSUJGJFE UFBDIFST: UIF  
SDIPPM'T MPDBUJPO, MBDL PG QFOTJPO, TNBMMFS CFOFGJUT HSPVQ TJ[F, QBZTDBMF BOE FYUFOEFE XPSL  
IPVST, BT DPNQBSFE UP N:CDOE. MBOBHFNFOU TUSJWFT UP PWFSDPNF UIFTF IBNQFSJOH  
GBDUPST UP DPNQMZ XJUI UFBDIFS DFSUJGJDBUJPO SFRVJSFNFOUT UP UIF CFTU PG PVS BCJMJUZ.  

● MBOBHFNFOU IBT JNQMFNFOUFE OFX QSPUPDPMT UP TUSJWF UP FOTVSF DPNQMJBODF, JODMVEJOH, CVU  
OPU MJNJUFE UP UIF GPMMPXJOH:   

o B OFX UVJUJPO SFJNCVSTFNFOU CFOFGJU QSJPSJUJ[JOH SFRVFTUT GSPN UFBDIFST TFFLJOH  
DFSUJGJDBUJPOT,  

o IPTUJOH BOOVBM SFDSVJUNFOU GBJST POTJUF BOE JODSFBTJOH QJQFMJOF GPS DFSUJGJDBUJPO  
UISPVHI TUVEFOU UFBDIJOH QSPHSBNT.   

o DPOEVDUJOH JOUFOTJWF SUBZ PBOFMT GPDVTJOH PO UFBDIFS SFUFOUJPO  
● IO BEEJUJPO, ERVBMJUZ DPOUJOVFT UP DPOUSBDU XJUI N:C CIBSUFS CFOUFS GPS DFSUJGJDBUJPO  

NPOJUPSJOH BOE HVJEBODF TFSWJDFT. MBOBHFNFOU DPOUJOVFT UP SFRVJSF NBOEBUPSZ POF-PO-POF  
NFFUJOHT XJUI BMM VODFSUJGJFE TUBGG NFNCFST UP FOTVSF UIBU TJHOJGJDBOU QSPHSFTT UPXBSET  
DFSUJGJDBUJPO JO B UJNFMZ NBOOFS; BOE DPOUJOVFT SFUSBJOJOH IJSJOH BOE SFDSVJUNFOU TUBGG PO UIF  
JNQPSUBODF PG DFSUJGJDBUJPO DPNQMJBODF.  

● LJLF NBOZ DIBSUFS TDIPPMT JO NFX :PSL CJUZ, ERVBMJUZ JT TUSJWJOH UP QSPWJEF IJHI RVBMJUZ  
FEVDBUJPO EFTQJUF UIF TDBSDJUZ PG DFSUJGJFE UFBDIFST BWBJMBCMF JO UIF DBOEJEBUF QPPM.   

 
 



 

                 
     

 
 

 
   

   

 

 
WF XJMM DPOUJOVF UP NPOJUPS UIFTF BOE PUIFS JTTVFT JO UIF DVSSFOU BOE DPNJOH GJTDBM ZFBST. WF  
BQQSFDJBUF ZPVS QSPGFTTJPOBM FYQFSUJTF BOE TVQQPSU.  
 

Sincerels� 

Gabriel Park� CFO 
ÈÂÉ�ÆÂÈ�ÄÂÇÊ erj ÄÂÁÂ 



   

7 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT 

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL ESC ACCT Page: 1 of 2 
EDWARD B HUBBARD ESC AGT Statement Period: Jul 01 2019-Jul 31 2019 
2 GOLD ST APT 3B Cust Ref #: 
NEW YORK NY 10038 Primary Account #: 

TD Small Business Money Market Plus 
EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL ESC ACCT Account # 
EDWARD B HUBBARD ESC AGT 

ACCOUNT SUMMARY 
Beginning Balance 72,956.80 Average Collected Balance 72,957.79 
Other Credits 30.98 Interest Earned This Period 30.98 

Interest Paid Year-to-Date 211.05 
Ending Balance 72,987.78 Annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.50% 

Days in Period 31 

DAILY ACCOUNT ACTIVITY 
Other Credits 
POSTING DATE DESCRIPTION 

07/31 INTEREST PAID 

Subtotal: 

AMOUNT 

30.98 

30.98 

DAILY BALANCE SUMMARY 
DATE 

06/30 
BALANCE 

72,956.80 
DATE 

07/31 
BALANCE 

72,987.78 

Call 1-800-937-2000 for 24-hour Bank-by-Phone services or connect to www.tdbank.com 
Bank Deposits FDIC Insured  TD Bank, N.A.  Equal Housing Lender 





	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	

Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information 
Created: 10/29/2019 • Last updated: 10/30/2019 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information 

requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined 

file. 

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact 
Name Email Phone 

Gabriel Park 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm 

Marc Taub 10 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced 

financial services firm. 

Firm Name Contact 
Person 

CSBM Karen Daniels 

Mailing
Address 

Email Phone Years with 
Firm 

10 

1 / 1 



    
          

  

     

           

     
     
                

  

            
          

   

               
            

           
            

New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



  
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

   
    
    
    
    

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     
 

 
   

Equality Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

12,807,687 2,514,464 
8,811,103 4,863,501 
3,996,584 (2,349,037) 

636 168 

636 168 

OTHER 

-
-
-

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

194,437 -
97,254 1,518,943 
97,183 (1,518,943) 

TOTAL 

15,516,588 
15,290,801 

225,787 
-

804 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

District of Location $16,150.00 

School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

10,282,931 -
- -
- -
- -
- -

10,282,931 

-
-
-
-
-

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

10,282,931 

-
-
-
-

10,282,931 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 2,514,464 

- -
- -

122,886 -
10,405,817 2,514,464 

355,135 -
52,708 -
98,640 -

- -

- -
- -

1,763,027 -
2,269,510 

- -
79,000 -

2,754 -
- -
- -

50,606 -
- -

132,360 

12,807,687 2,514,464 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

194,437 -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

194,437 

194,437 

2,514,464 

-
-

122,886 

12,920,281 

355,135 

52,708 

98,640 

-

-
-

1,763,027 

2,269,510 

194,437 

79,000 

2,754 

-
-

50,606 

-
326,797 

15,516,588 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 169,455 30,030 2,145 12,870 214,500 

Instructional Management 18.00 1,047,496 642,952 3,377 20,262 1,714,087 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators - - - - - -



    
   

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  

 

  

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 

  
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Equality Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 12,807,687 2,514,464 - 194,437 -
Total Expenses 8,811,103 4,863,501 - 97,254 1,518,943 

Net Income 3,996,584 (2,349,037) - 97,183 (1,518,943) 
Actual Student Enrollment 636 168 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 636 168 

TOTAL 

15,516,588 
15,290,801 

225,787 
-

804 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 - - - 153,000 

Operation / Business Manager 5.00 - - - 465,068 

Administrative Staff 8.00 - - - 344,568 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 33 1,216,951 672,982 5,522 995,769 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 38.00 1,739,626 619,189 - -
Teachers - SPED 18.00 - 1,181,640 - -
Substitute Teachers - - - - -
Teaching Assistants - - - - -
Specialty Teachers 11.00 534,288 190,170 - -
Aides - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 14.00 611,595 445,747 - -
Other 10.00 522,076 138,780 - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 91 3,407,584 2,575,526 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Other 3.00 111,587 39,717 - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 3 111,587 39,717 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 127 4,736,122 3,288,226 5,522 995,769 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 379,929 263,780 443 79,880 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 572,190 397,264 667 120,303 

Retirement / Pension 210,275 145,991 245 44,210 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,162,395 807,035 1,355 244,393 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 5,898,517 4,095,261 6,877 1,240,162 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - 26,733 

Legal 32,248 8,486 424 1,273 

Management Company Fee - - - -
Nurse Services - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - -
Payroll Services 27,725 7,296 365 1,094 

Special Ed Services - - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title I) - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 238,591 62,958 2,296 102,423 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 298,563 78,740 3,085 131,523 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

153,000 

465,068 

344,568 

2,891,224 

2,358,815 

1,181,640 

-
-

724,458 

-
1,057,342 

660,855 

5,983,110 

-
-
-
-

151,305 

151,305 

9,025,639 

724,032 

1,090,424 

400,722 

2,215,178 

11,240,817 

26,733 

42,432 

-
-
-

36,480 

-
-

406,267 

511,911 



 
     

    
  

   
  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

     
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

   
    
    
    
    

  
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Equality Charter School 

Board Expenses - - - - -
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 248,407 66,032 - - 314,439 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials 13,609 3,618 - - 17,227 

Textbooks / Workbooks - - - - -
Supplies & Materials other - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 10,390 2,739 112 336 13,577 

Telephone 9,519 2,505 125 376 12,525 

Technology 26,069 6,917 64 191 33,241 

Student Testing & Assessment 23,168 6,158 - - 29,326 

Field Trips 44,259 11,765 - - 56,023 

Transportation (student) - - - - -
Student Services - other 50,043 13,291 56 168 63,559 

Office Expense 145,103 38,185 1,909 5,728 190,925 

Staff Development 153,518 40,787 106 68,087 262,498 

Staff Recruitment 36,986 9,832 - - 46,818 

Student Recruitment / Marketing 9,851 2,618 - - 12,469 

School Meals / Lunch 9,670 2,570 - - 12,240 

Travel (Staff) - - - - -
Fundraising - - 60,795 - 60,795 

Other 3,469 913 46 137 4,564 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 784,060 207,931 63,213 75,022 1,130,226 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 136,154 35,830 1,791 5,374 179,150 

Janitorial - - - - -
Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,339,901 352,605 17,630 52,891 1,763,027 

Repairs & Maintenance - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture - - - - -
Security - - - - -
Utilities 51,809 13,634 682 2,045 68,169 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1,527,863 402,069 20,103 60,310 2,010,347 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 302,100 79,500 3,975 11,925 397,500 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,811,103 4,863,501 97,254 1,518,943 15,290,801 

NET INCOME 3,996,584 (2,349,037) - 97,183 (1,518,943) 225,787 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
TOTAL 

ENROLLED 

District of Location 636 168 804 

School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 12,807,687 2,514,464 - 194,437 - 15,516,588 
Total Expenses 8,811,103 4,863,501 - 97,254 1,518,943 15,290,801 

Net Income 3,996,584 (2,349,037) - 97,183 (1,518,943) 225,787 
Actual Student Enrollment 636 168 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 636 168 804 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

  
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Equality Charter School 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 636 168 804 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 20,138 14,967 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 13,854 28,949 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 12,807,687 2,514,464 - 194,437 - 15,516,588 
Total Expenses 8,811,103 4,863,501 - 97,254 1,518,943 15,290,801 

Net Income 3,996,584 (2,349,037) - 97,183 (1,518,943) 225,787 
Actual Student Enrollment 636 168 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 636 168 804 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

         

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 























































	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Last updated: 07/19/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Ben 
Costa 

Ayisha
Devonish 

Len 
Gilbert 

Ardian 
Hasko 

Ed 
Hubbard 

Erika 
King 

James 
Stringfell 
ow 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Secretary 

Vice 
Chair 

Chair 

Trustee/M
ember 

Treasurer 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Academic 
Accounta 
bility,
Develop 
ment 

Finance, 
Academic 
Accounta 
bility 

Develop 
ment, 
Governan 
ce 

Governan 
ce, 
Develop 
ment, 
Finance, 
Academic 
Accounta 
bility 

Governan 
ce, 
FInance 

Develop 
ment, 
Academic 
Accounta 
bility,
Finance 

Finance 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

1 

1 

1 

2 

2 

2 

1 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

8/1/2018 

8/1/2018 

08/1/201
7 

08/01/20
18 

08/01/20
17 

08/01/20
18 

08/01/20
17 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

08/01/20
21 

08/01/20
21 

08/01/20
20 

08/01/20
21 

08/01/20
20 

08/01/20
21 

08/01/20
20 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

9 

5 or less 

10 

9 

11 

6 

11 

2 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

7 

3 

2 

7 

12 

12 

3 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Last updated: 07/26/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

Yes 

A. Provide if posted on the 

charter school's website a URL 

http://www.equalitycharterschool.org/about us/our board/ 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/10/2019 • Last updated: 07/25/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

EQUALITY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

1 / 4 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

We distributed application materials during
our community outreach to organizations
serving families in need and that receiveEconom services through WIC and the offices of theically Department of Children and Family Services.Disadva We continued to run psychoeducationalntaged groups to meet the emotional needs of
scholars (voluntary group therapy format
during lunch). 

We held successful Community Outreach
week long recruitment launch where we
canvassed the Hunts Point Section of the 
Bronx, our target neighborhood.
We used a third party company to sendEnglish

promotional material to families of enteringLangua 
6th & 9th grade students.ge
We advertised in a Spanish languageLearner 

newspaper El Darios/Multili
All materials were printed in English andngual

Spanish.Learner 
Connection were made with local Welcome s 

Center relationship building with those
employees and distribution of promotional
material through the center. 

We distributed application materials during
our community outreach to organizations
serving families in need and that receive
services through WIC and the offices of the
Department of Children and Family Services.
We attended events that organizations held

that serve families in need with services 
through WIC and the Department of Children
and Family Services.
We continued to run psychoeducational

groups to meet the emotional needs of
scholars (voluntary group therapy format
during lunch). 

Spanish speaking school staff lead
Community Outreach week long recruitment
launch where we canvassed the Hunts Point 
Section of the Bronx, our target
neighborhood and other areas with high ELL
populations.
We used a third party company to send

promotional material to families of entering
9th grade students.
We advertised in a Spanish language

newspaper El Dario.
All materials were printed in English and

Spanish.
Connections were made with local Welcome 

Center relationship building with those
employees and distribution of promotional
material through the center with follow up
visits/check ins.
We ran a 12 week bus ad in the Hunts Point 

Section of the Bronx, our target
neighborhood inviting families to our Open
House and online application portal.
We held private school tours for middle

schools in our target neighborhood with high
populations of ELL scholars.
We attended school fairs in the Hunts Point 

Section of the Bronx our target
neighborhood. 

We recruited at schools and centers that We recruited at schools and centers that Student serve students with special disabilities. Our serve students with special disabilities.s with Special Population Coordinator conducted Our Special Population CoordinatorDisabilit info sessions with parents to review the conducted info sessions with parents toies services their child needed. review the services their child needed. 

2 / 4 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

Uniform and school supply materials were
provided at no cost to the families
experiencing financial hardship.
Social Workers coordinated referrals to 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

outside social service providers for additional
support to our students and their families.
Social Workers created a Community

Resource Directory of outside service options
in our neighborhoods that could provide
assistance for a variety of needs. This
directory was used without the assistance of
a Social Worker and is accessible on our 
website and in our main offices. 
Scholars received additional fee reductions 

for exams beyond state reductions.
Field Trip, graduation and prom expenses

were waived for families experiencing
financial hardship. 

Current ELL families volunteered and 
helped plan some parent events. This helped
to get the word out to other ELL families that
have or want their child to attend our school. 
We increased instructional support efforts:

daily ESOL course for beginning ELLs, ELL
teacher co teaching in high volume
beginning ELL classes.English Translation services expanded: signageLangua throughout buildings in multiple languages,ge devices provided for teachers to readilyLearner translate materials for scholars and parents.s/Multili All beginning ELLs received personalngual laptops for the school year to ensure dailyLearner access to language needs.s Scholars were given access to Imagine
Learning (online instructional system) which
allows language progress to take place both
at school and at home. 
Personal calls were made in the Spring by

instructional staff to inquire about
satisfaction of school services and to inquire
about intent of returning (and encourage it). 

Uniform and school supply materials were
provided at no cost to the families
experiencing financial hardship
Social Workers coordinated referrals to 

outside social service providers for additional
support to our students and their families.
Social Workers created a Community

Resource Directory of outside service options
in our neighborhoods that could provide
assistance for a variety of needs. This
directory was used without the assistance of
a Social Worker and is accessible on our 
website and in our main offices. 
Scholars received additional fee reductions 

for exams beyond state reductions.
Field Trip, graduation and prom expenses

continued to be waived for families 
experiencing financial hardship. 

Current ELL families volunteered and 
presented at some parent events. This
helped to get the word out to other ELL
families that have or want their child to 
attend our school. 
We continued to increase instructional 

support efforts: daily ESOL course for
beginning ELLs, ELL teacher co teaching in
high volume beginning ELL classes.
Translation services expanded: signage

throughout buildings in multiple languages,
devices provided for teachers to readily
translate materials for scholars and parents.
All beginning ELLs received personal

laptops for the school year to ensure daily
access to language needs.
Scholars were given access to Imagine

Learning (online instructional system) which
allows language progress to take place both
at school and at home. 
Personal calls were made in the Spring by

instructional staff to inquire about
satisfaction of school services and to inquire
about intent of returning (and encourage it).
ELL scholars conducted tours to potential

ELL families. 

We ensured that families of students with 
disabilities never saw us lowering 

3 / 4 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

expectations for their children.
We provided parents./guardians avenues to

provide feedback and express any concerns
they have through parent teacher
conferences and IEP meetings.Student 
We expanded our SpEd services offering:s with 

SETSS resource room, case managerDisabilit 
support, added American Sign Language asies 
another LOTE option.
We increased our number of chromebooks 

for SpEd department use.
We expanded our Work Study Program, in

collaboration with the Training Opportunity
Program, to support efforts toward CDOS
credential. 

We continued to ensure that families of 
students with disabilities never saw us 
lowering expectations for their children.
We provided parents./guardians avenues to

provide feedback and express any concerns
they have through parent teacher
conferences and IEP meetings.
We continued to launch our expanded SpEd

services offering: SETSS resource room, case
manager support, added American Sign
Language as another LOTE option.
We continued to collaborate with the 

Training Opportunity Program, to support
efforts toward CDOS credential. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/01/2019 • Last updated: 07/29/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

56.4 7.9 2.4 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

50.05 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1.43 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1.2 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

2 59.6 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

2 51.6 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

History Teacher was promoted to History Department Head in July 2018 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Last updated: 07/29/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

25.9 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

31 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

25.9 

4.5 

0 

2 

2 

17.4 
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NYC Department of Buildings 
280 Broadway, New York, NY 10007 
 
Thomas Fariello, R.A., Acting Commissioner 
 
 
 

Letter of Completion 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Re:   

 Job #: 
 Block:              Lot:   

 
 

Dear 
 
Please be advised that the work related to the above application is completed 
and was signed off in the Building Information System (BIS) on 
 
Based on the nature of the work filed on this application a new certificate of 
occupancy is not required. 
 
 
 
 
   Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
   Borough Commissioner 
 

STEVEN P HAMMER
1001 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
NEW YORK, NY 10018

2141 SEWARD AVENUE, BRONX

3610 1

STEVEN P HAMMER:

03/28/2019.

Letter Generated on: 03/29/2019

This permit copy created on 03/29/2019 reflects the Commissioner(s) as of such date.

BRONX
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CO Number:

Certificate of Occupancy

This  certifies  that  the  premises  described  herein  conforms  substantially  to  the  approved  plans and specifications and to the

This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the
building at all reasonable times.

requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued.

Borough: BronxA.

Address: 2141 SEWARD AVENUE

Building Identification Number (BIN): 2094817

Block Number: 03610

Building Type:
Altered

Certificate Type: Temporary

Effective Date: 02/12/2018

C.

D.

E.

Fire Protection Equipment:

Type and number of open spaces:

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations:

05/13/2018Expiration Date:

Fire alarm system

None associated with this filing.

None

There are 10 outstanding requirements. Please refer to BISWeb for further detail.

Outstanding requirements for obtaining Final Certificate of Occupancy:

OK TO RENEW TCO FOR 90 DAYS. POST ONE (1) FIREGUARD PER FLOOR (B-3 FLOORS UNTIL FIRE ALARM IS 
SIGNED OFF

Borough Comments:

Lot Number(s): 1  

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb.

This building is subject to this Building Code:  Prior to 1968 Code

B. Construction classification:

Building Occupancy Group classification:

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification:

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units:4 35

E

None

0

(2014/2008 Code)

1 (Prior to 1968 Code designation)

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE

Borough Commissioner Commissioner
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CO Number:

Certificate of Occupancy

               
      
Floor 
From To

          
Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft.

 
Maximum
persons 
permitted

          
Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units

                  
        
Zoning 
use group

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            
Description of use

Permissible Use and Occupancy
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations.

BAS OG320 0 3 CAFETERIA, KITCHEN, STORAGE, BOILER 
ROOM, ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT ROOM, 
ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM.

A-3

001 100864 0 3 MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM (AUDITORIUM/GYM), 
CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, TOILETS, LOBBY.

E
A-3

001

002 100360 0 3 CLASSROOMSE002

003 40180 0 3 CLASSROOMS, OFFICES, TOILETSE003

END OF SECTION

Borough Commissioner Commissioner

END OF DOCUMENT /12/2018 12:45:48 PM




